
AIMC Meeting Minutes-June 11, 2013  Page 1 of 4 

 

Alaska Intertie Management Committee 
MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, June 11, 2013 
Anchorage, Alaska 

 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Brad Evans called the meeting of the Alaska Intertie Management Committee to order on 
June 11, 2013 at 9:10 a.m. A quorum was established. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members present: Brad Evans (Chugach Electric); Jim Posey – Anchorage Municipal Light & 
Power (ML&P); Joe Griffith – Matanuska Electric Association (MEA); and Gene Therriault – 
Alaska Energy Authority (AEA). 
 
3. PUBLIC ROLL CALL 
 
Public participating: Sara Fisher-Goad, Kirk Warren, Kelli Veech and Sandie Hayes (AEA); 
Louis Agi and Jeff Warner (ML&P); Burke Wick and Brian Hickey (Chugach Electric); Denali 
Daniels (MEA); Bernie Smith – Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA); David Burlingame and 
Doug Hall (Electric Power Systems); John Burns - Golden Valley Electric Association (GVEA); 
Brian Bjorkquist (Department of Law); Kirk Gibson (McDowell Rackner & Gibson); and Sunny 
Morrison (Accu-Type Depositions).  
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
5. AGENDA COMMENTS/MOTION FOR APPROVAL 
 
MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve the agenda. Motion seconded by Mr. 
Posey. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
6A. Approval on FY14 Budget  
 
MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve the FY14 Budget. Motion seconded by 
Mr. Posey. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
6B. Update from Project Managers on Static Var Compensator (SVC) Project 
 
Mr. Hall and Mr. Burlingame gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the Static Var 
Compensator Replacement Project. 
 
Chair Evans asked if the battery can perform the function of the static var compensator and if 
there was a problem taking it out. Mr. Burlingame stated the battery can perform the function 



AIMC Meeting Minutes-June 11, 2013  Page 2 of 4 

 

and there wasn't a problem taking it out electrically, but there was a problem with the physical 
work due to cold weather issues. Chair Evans asked for the scope of the replacement. Mr. 
Burlingame stated all the power electronics, thyristors and controls will be replaced. Chair 
Evans asked if there wasn't enough space in the current building. Mr. Burlingame stated there 
are issues with getting things in and out of the building. 
 
Mr. Hall stated Healy was scheduled after Gold Hill for March and the building needs to be 
sealed. Chair Evans commented Gold Hill would be the best one to start with because it is the 
least problematic to have out of service. Mr. Burlingame said they had the same opinion.  
 
Chair Evans stated he understood the contractor Alstom wanted to migrate their control platform 
and this project got caught in that transition. Mr. Hall stated the contractor knew this project 
would use the newest platform, but they lost three of their specialized programmers. Chair 
Evans asked if Alstom can recover from that loss. Mr. Hall stated Alstom has placed other 
programmers on this project already and the hardware is ready to be tested. He feels very 
strongly they can complete this project.  
 
Chair Evans asked Mr. Burlingame to explain how the thyristors are sized. Mr. Burlingame 
stated they are sized to the full rating of the SVC and to the current reactors and the capacitors. 
He said the control equipment has increased capability. Mr. Burlingame stated if there are 
upgrades up north, a new SVC is required because of the range of the physical equipment. 
 
Mr. Griffith asked what kind of software documentation Alstom will provide. Mr. Burlingame 
believes the program will always be proprietary and the core platform will not be able to be 
changed, but the implementation can be changed. Mr. Griffith asked if there is a maintenance 
plan for the system. Mr. Burlingame stated this system should have significantly less 
maintenance problems than the existing system because it is digitally controlled. Chair Evans 
asked if there was a training requirement in the contract. Mr. Burlingame stated there are three 
extensive training requirements; one in Anchorage, Healy, and Fairbanks. 
 
Mr. Griffith asked if this delay in the project will cost additional money. Mr. Posey said it would 
not cost more money. Mr. Hall stated there will be an additional charge on insurance and Alstom 
has been advised they are expected to cover that increased cost. 
 
Mr. Hall stated it is about a $400,000 cost if the legacy system has to be installed before the 
winter at Teeland. Alstom has indicated they would want financial help for that and Mr. Hall 
stated no financial assistance would be given to Alstom. Mr. Hall stated the legacy system 
would then be replaced next year. Chair Evans asked if there is a firm schedule on the 
completion of the software package. Mr. Hall stated Alstom has given a verbal schedule of 
completion for the end of September, which would allow for the installation of Teeland to occur 
at the end of this year.  
 
Mr. Griffith asked Chair Evans regarding the status of the update on the SVCs at Soldotna and 
Dave's Creek. Chair Evans does not have the update yet.   
 
6C. Railbelt Reliability and Reserves Criteria Resolution  
 
Mr. Therriault stated AEA requests more time to work through the document before voting on 
the resolution. He commented on the concerns regarding any authority the Railbelt Reliability 
Committee (RRC) has been given in the document. Chair Evans stated all references to the 



AIMC Meeting Minutes-June 11, 2013  Page 3 of 4 

 

RRC need to be purged from the resolution. Chair Evans commented the reliability standards 
need to be in place before the open access language can be determined. 
 
Mr. Griffith objected to postponing the vote of this resolution. He believes it meets the standards 
for guidelines. Mr. Posey wants to know who else is interested in participating in the intertie and 
wants to know the details of their involvement.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Therriault made a motion to table the vote on the Railbelt Reliability and 
Reserves Criteria Resolution until 9:00 a.m. on July 9, 2013. Motion seconded by Mr. 
Posey. MEA voted against the motion but the motion was approved by majority. 
 
Ms. Fisher-Goad commented the additional 30 days is also to ensure the integrity of the rules 
were appropriately and publicly vetted and any comments received will come to the IMC. Chair 
Evans respectfully does not agree it is a public process to vet technical operating rules and 
believes the public process is appropriate for the framework of open access.  
  
6D. Open Access Dialogue 
 
Chair Evans commented all the operators in the system have to adhere to the rules and realizes 
there are disagreements regarding reserves that have to be addressed, but does not believe the 
issues are complex. Chair Evans believes congestion will be the hardest issue to address. 
 
Mr. Griffith asked who the filter is for the open access needs that these other parties have. He 
believes it has to be the IMC. Chair Evans commented there is a good framework with 
standardized programs which provides a mathematical way of determining congestion. He 
stated the agreement would stipulate this process that has to take place and everyone has to 
abide by the outcome.  
 
Mr. Posey stated some of these types of issues were resolved when they worked with the RCA 
on the metering rules. Mr. Hickey commented there is no mystery on how independent power 
producers would pay for open access, but he believes their perception is different than what 
really happens. Mr. Hickey stated the existing open access language throughout the United 
States and mandated by FERC can be condensed into a document that works for Alaska. 
 
Mr. Hall commented open access is a joke because there is no transmission to have open 
access to and from a practical point of view, it is open access on paper only. Chair Evans 
doesn't think it is fair to say it is a joke, but believes there could be congestion right away. Mr. 
Hall stated until improvements are made to the transmission system, it doesn't do any good to 
have open access tariffs because they can't use the system. He said the word "over-subscribed" 
is a better description than the word "joke." 
 
Chair Evans suggested acknowledging in the open access preamble language that congestion 
currently exists in the railbelt. Mr. Burlingame agreed a statement like that should be included in 
any type of tariff or agreement. 
 
Mr. Therriault stated he now has a better understanding of the complications and frailty of the 
current system and believes part of AEA's role is educating the policy makers, including Board 
members and legislators. He stated Alaska does not have a system as robust as the Lower 48 
and is not likely to have one any time soon.  
 




